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VISION

To maximize market share by producing and marketing highest quality vehicles in
Pakistan.

MISSION

e As a customer oriented Company, provide highest level of customer

satisfaction.

e To accelerate performance in all operating areas, ensuring growth of the

Company and increasing return to the stakeholders.

e To create a conducive working environment leading to enhanced productivity,

job satisfaction and personal development of the employees.

e To contribute to social welfare by adopting environment friendly practices and

processes for the well being of society.
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GHANDHARA NISSAN LIMITED
NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that 31% Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of Ghandhara Nissan Limited will be held on
Wednesday, the 30t October, 2013 at 12:30 P.M., at Ghandhara House 109/2, Clifton, Karachi, to transact the following business:

Or

Business:
To confirm the minutes of the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 7® June, 2013.

To receive, consider and approve the Audited Accounts of the Company for the year ended 30" June, 2013 together with Directors’
and Auditors’ Reports thereon.

To appoint Auditors for the year ending 30® June, 2014 and fix their remuneration. The retiring Auditors, M/s. Hameed Chaudhri
& Co., Chartered Accountants and M/s, Muniff Ziauddin & Co., Chartered Accountants being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment.

Special Business:

)

i)

Additional investment in Ghandhara DF (Pvt.) Limited a wholly owned subsidiary company of Ghandhara Nissan Ltd:

In order to enable Ghandhara DF (Pvi.) Limited to successfully execute its business plan the following investment plan is
proposed to the shareholders of the company:

1) Equity Rs.150 million
2) Corporate Guarantee from Rs.500 million to
Rs.1000 million

Subject to regulatory approvals the Board of Directors, in their meeting held on 30% September, 2013 have given their consent to
scek approval of the shareholders U/S-208 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 for the following additional invesiment in GDFPL:

- Equity from Rs.30 million to Rs.150 million
- Corporate Guarantee from Rs.500 million to Rs.1,000 million, and to pass the following Special Resclution:-

“Resolved that Subject to regulatory approvals the company is hereby authorized to make the following additional investment in
Ghandhara DF (Pvt.) Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the company:

- Equity from Rs.30 million to Rs.150 million
- Corporate Guarantee from Rs.500 million to Rs.1,000 million.”

Amendment in the Articles of Association of the Company:

The company has partially adopted Table-A, In order to incorporate the changes brought about in the relevant Regulations of
Table-A, the following Special Resolution is proposed to be passed:-

“Resolved that

in Article-119 after the word ‘dividend’ the words and comma “in cash, and/or in specie” be inserted.
Further resolved that
after the Article-94 relating to proceedings of directors, following new Article be inserted as Article 94-A:-
“The directors may hold theit meetings through tele/video conferencing in emergent situation where it is not
possible for them to be physically present at the venue of the meeting, provided that the minutes of such meeting
are approved and signed subsequently by all directors who participated in such meeting, requirements of the

requisite quorum and other legal formalities relating to holding of such meetings have been observed and
tele/video recording of the proceedings of the meetings are kept for the purpose of the record.”

A statement Under Section 160(1)(b) of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 pertaining to the Special Business stated in para (i) and (ii)
above is annexed to this Notice of the meeting.

To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.
By Order of the Board

AQIEL AMJAD GHANI

Karachi: 8% October, 2013 (COMPANY SECRETARY)
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NOTES:

1.

2.

The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 28" October 2013 to 4™ November 2013 (both days inclusive).

A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entifled to cast histher vote by proxy. Proxies must be

deposited at the Company’s Registered Office at Ghandhara House 109/2, Clifton, Karachi not later than 48 hours before the time
for holding the meeting.

Individual beneficial owners of CDC entitled to attend and vote at this meeting must bring their participant ID and account/sub-

account numbers along with original CNIC or passport to verify his/her identity. In case of Corporate entity, resolution of the

Board of Directors/Power of Attorney with specimen signature of the nominees shall be produced (unless submitted eatlier) at the
time of meeting.

For appointing proxies, the individual beneficial owners of CDC shall submit the proxy form as per above requirement alongwith
participant ID and account / sub-account number together with attested copy of their CNIC or passport. The proxy form shall be

witnessed by two witnesses with their names, addresses and CNIC numbers. The proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC or
passport at the time of meeting, In case of Corporate entity, resolution of the Board of Directors/Power of Attorney with specimen
signature of the proxy shall be produced at the time of meeting (unless submitted earlier) alongwith the proxy form.

Members are requested to notify any change in their address, immediately to our Share Registrar’s Office — M/s. THK Associates
(Pvt.) Ltd., Ground Floor, State Life Bldg. No.3, Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road, Karachi.

Statement U/S-160{1 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984

1. Imvestment in Ghandhara DF Limited

Ghendhara Nissan Limited has invested in a 100% owned subsidiary by the name of Ghandhara DF (Pvt) Limited herein after referred to as
GDFPL.

The principal activity of GDFPL will be the assembly/progressive manufacture of Dongfeng heavy and light duty commercial vehicles in
Pakistan from the CKD Kits to be imported from Dongfeng Commercial Vehicle Company and Dongfeng Automobile Company Limited.

In order to enable GDFPL to catry out sustainable operations it is proposed to increase already approved limit of equity investment in
GDFPL by GNL from Rs 30 million to 150 million.

The Board is therefore pleased to share the following information with its members:-

e  The purpose of investment is to enable GDFPL to import CKD kits and sell the vehicles in the commercial market that are
assembled under contract Assembly agreement with GNL. This will also enable GDFPL to obtain working capital lines
from the Banks. The investment will be for indefinite period. Profit derived from the operations of GDFPL will accrue to
GNL which may be received in the form of Dividend. Salient features of the Contract Assembly between GNL and GDFPL
are as below:-

o GNL shall provide the labour-force, premises, facilities, equipment, machines and tools required for the assembly
operations specified herein as agreed. However, GDFPL shall provide, at its costs and expenses all the
specialized equipment to GNL, which shall install and commission the same under the supervision of GDFPL.

o GDFPL shall be respensible for the timely supply of the required technology, designs, CKD and local

components and materials ete for assembly by GNL in accordance with the assembly programmes and Bills of

Material agreed between GNL and GDFPL from time to time.
o  Assembly charges will be decided mutually by both the Parties.

The maximum amount of equity investment will be Rs 150 million including Rs 30 million for which approval was obtained in
extraordinary general meeting held on June 782013.

The Shares of GDFPL will be acquired by GNL at face value i.e Rs 10/share of GDFPL as GDFPL has not yet staried operations
and its accounts are not available, as such the face value of the shares may be considered as its breakup value.

The maximum number of shares to be acquired will be 15 million shares including 3 million shares for which approval was
obtained in Extraordinary General Meeting held on June 7% 2013. It is pertinent to mention that 1 million shares have already
been acquired.

The percentage of shares held by GNL in GDFPL will remain 100% both before and after the proposed equity investment.
However, the number of shares held, will increase from existing one million shares to a maxinmum of 15 million shares

It is proposed that funds for this proposed equity investment will be from internal generation of Profits.

GHANDHARA NISSAN LIMITED
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In addition to the enhancement in the limit of equity investment it is proposed to increase the already approved limit of Corporate
Guarantee of Rs.500 million to Rs.1000 million.

In context of the above proposal regarding increase in limit of corporate guarantee, following information is being disseminated to the

members:-

®  The proposed amount of corporate guarantee is Rs. 1000 million including Rs. 500 million for which approval was obtained
in extraordinary general meeting held on June 7% 2013, but has not been firnished as yet as GDFPL has not yvet started
operations.

®  The purpose of investment is to enable GDFPL to import CKD kits and sell the vehicles in the commercial market that are
assembled under contract Assembly arrangement with GNL. This will also enable GDFPL to obtain working capital lines
from the Banks. Profit derived from the operations of GDFPL will acerue to GNL which may be received in the form of
Dividend.

®  The proposed commission on corporate guarantee is 1%.
®  GNL shall hold stock and receivables as collateral against Corporate Guarantee provided to GDFPL.

®  The information required under S.R.0O. 27(1)/2012 is provided below;

S.No. Description Information Required
1. Name of the associated company or associated undertaking Ghandhara DF (Private) Limited
along with criteria based on which the associated relationship | 2 100% owned subsidiary
is established
2 Purpose, benefits and period of investment To enable GDFPL to import CKD kits and sell the vehicles
in the commercial market that are assembled under contract
Assembly agreement with GNL.
3. Maximum amount of investment Rs 150 million
4, Maximum price at which securities will be acquired Rs. 10
5. maximum number of securities to be acquired 15 million shares
6. Number of securities and percentage thereof held before and The percentage of shares held by GNL in GDFPL will
after the proposed investment remain 100% both before and after the proposed equity

investment .However, the number of shares held, will
increase from existing one million shares to a maximum of

15 million shares
7. In case of investment in listed securities, average of the
preceding twelve weekly average price of the security i
intended to be Acquired Not Applicable
8. In case of investment in unlisted securities, fair market value The Shares of GDFPL will be acquired by GNL at face value
of such securities determined in terms of regulation 6(1) ie Rs 10/share of GDFPL as GDFPL has not yet started
operations and its accounts are not available, as such the face
value of the shares may be considered as its breakup value.
9. Break-up value of securities intended to be acquired on the Not applicable (Since GDFPL was incorporated in June
basis of the latest audited financial statements 2013)
10. Earning per share of the associated company or associated Not applicable (Since GDFPL was incorporated in June
undertaking for the last three years 2013)
11. Sources of fund from which securities will be acquired It is proposed that funds for this proposed equity investment
will be from internal generation of Profits
12. where the securities arc intended to be acquired using
borrowed funds,-
(I) justification for investment through borrowings; and Not Applicable

(I) detail of guarantees and assets pledged for obtaining such
funds;
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13. Salient features of the agreement(s), if any, entered into with o  GNL shall provide the labour-force, premises, facilities,
its associated company or associated undertaking with regards equipment, machines and tools required for the
to the proposed investment assembly operations specified herein as agreed.

However, GDFPL shall provide, at its costs and
expenses all the specialized equipment to GNL, which
shall install and commission the same under the
supervision of GDFPL.

o  GDFPL shall be responsible for the timely supply of the
required technology, designs, CKD and local
components and materials etc for assembly by GNL in
accordance with the assembly programmes and Bills of
Material agreed between GNL and GDFPL from time to
time.

o  Assembly charges will be decided mutually by both the
Parties.

14. Direct or indirect interest of directors, sponsors, majority Ghandhara Nissan Limited (GNL) being the sponsor
sharcholders and their relatives, if any, in the associated company of the proposed subsidiary company i.e. Ghandhara
company or associated undertaking or the transaction under DF (Pwvt.) Limited, will re.ceive dividend and will earn
G — agsembly charges on production of Dongfeng vehicles. There

i8 no direct interest of the Directors of GNL in GDFPL.

However, the directors of GDFPL are also the directors of

GNL, the sponsor company.

15. Any other important details necessary for the members to | None
understand the transaction

16. In case of investment in securities of a project of an associated
company or associated undertaking that has not commenced
operations, in addition to the information referred io above,
the following further information, is required, namely,-

(I) description of the project and its history since

conceptualization;

(1) starting and expected dated of completion of work; NotAppliatle
(II) time by which such project shall become commercially

operational; and

(IV) expected time by which the project shall start paying

return on investment

2. _Amendment in the Articles of Association

Preamble

As per the Articles of Association of the Company, the company has not adopted the entire Table-A. Accordingly those regulations of
Table-A which have been adopted in the Articles of Association of the Company may be amended because of the changes brought about in
Table-A through SRO 194 dated March 11, 2013.

In Article-119 relating to dividend; after the word ‘dividend’ the words and comma “in cash, and/or in specic™ be inserted.

After the Article-94 relating to proceedings of directors, following new Article shall be inserted as Article 94-A:-

“The directors may held their meetings through tele/video conferencing in emergent sitnation where it is not possible for them to be
physically present at the venue of the meeting, provided that the minutes of such meeting are approved and signed subsequently by all
directors who participated in such meeting, requirements of the requisite quorum and other legal formalities relating to holding of such
meetings have been observed and tele/video recording of the proceedings of the meetings are kept for the purpose of the record.”
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Chairman’s Review

I am pleased to present to you the annual financial statements of your company for the year
ended 30 June 2013,

The Economy

The economic conditions of the country during the year remained distressed. Factors like high
inflation, law and order situation, severe energy crisis and depreciation of Pak Rupee have all

contributed in adversely affecting the economy.

The GDP growth was 3.6% as against 4.4% last year. The inflation recorded during the period
was 10%. It is expected that with the change in the Government the energy crisis will be
resolved in due course of time and business oriented policies will be introduced and implemented

by the government for the growth and development of economy.

Company’s Performance

The Company sold 226 units of UD trucks as compared to sale of 230 units last year, besides 70
units of Dongfeng Vehicles were sold in commercial market for the first time in Pakistan which
were imported in CBU condition. During the year under the review, the contract assembly
business showed an increase over last year. 1,568 units were assembled as compared to 1,379
units last year. The management has been able to maintain administration and selling expenses
close to the last year level despite high inflation, During the period under review, the company

earned after tax profit of Rs.38.385 million as against a loss of Rs.85.968 million last year.
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Future Outlook

I am pleased to state that the Company has been able to establish the Donfeng Vehicles in the
market through the import and sale of CBU vehicles. Now, in order to expand the Dongfeng
business and undertake CKD assembly thereof, a wholly owned subsidiary company by the
Name of Ghandhara DF (Private) Limited has been established to carry out the operations of
Dongfeng Vehicles exclusively.

Acknowledgement

On behalf of Board of Directors and on my own behalf, I would take this opportunity to express
our thanks to Nissan Motor Co. Japan, UD Trucks Corporation Japan (Formerly Nissan Diesel
Motor Co. Limited Japan), Dongfeng Commercial Vehicle Company, Dongfeng Automobile
Company Limited, the Management of Sigma Motors (Pvt.) Ltd., Ghandhara Industries Ltd.,
Shareholders, Dealers and Vendors for their co-operation. I would also like to express gratitude

for sincere efforts of the workers, staff and executives of the Company.

I am also very grateful to our bankers for their cooperation and understanding shown to us and

we look forward to mutual beneficial business relationships.

Karachi Raza Kuli Khan Khattak
Dated: 30™ September, 2013 Chairman Board of Directors
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Directors’ Report

Financial Results

Profit /(Loss) before taxation

Taxation
Current
Prior year
Deferred

Profit / (Loss) after taxation
Accumulated profit
Brought forward

Incremental depreciation

Accumulated profit
Carried forward

Earning / (Loss) per share

The Directors of your Company are pleased to present their Report together with the Audited
Accounts and Auditors’ Report thereon for the year ended 30™ June 2013.

The financial results for the year ended 30™ June 2013 are summarized below:-

2013 2012
(Rupees in thousands)

45,919 (97,683)
(9,314) (14,686)
192 (142)
1,588 26,543
(7,534) 11,715
38,385 (85,968)
49,226 114,349
20,798 20,845
70,024 135,194
108,409 49,226
0.85 (1.91)
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The Board of Directors has recommended nil dividend for the year ended 30™ June 2013 with a
view to conserve the resources for the new Dongfeng project to be undertaken by Ghandhara DF
(Pvt.) Limited 100% owned subsidiary of Ghandhara Nissan Limited.




Operating Results

The company earned a profit after tax of Rs.38.385 million, as against a loss after tax of Rs.86

million in corresponding year.

This was possible due to increase in volume of contract assembly, sale of Dongfeng vehicles in

CBU condition and favorable exchange rate movement.

Chairman’s Review

The Review included in the Annual Report deals inter-alia with the performance of the Company
for the year ended 30™ June 2013 and its future outlook. The Directors of the Company endorse

the contents of this Review.

Statement of Compliance with Code of Corporate Governance

As required under the code of corporate governance, the Directors are pleased to confirm that:

e The financial statements, prepared by the management of the company, present its state

of affairs fairly, the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity;
¢ Proper books of account of the company have been maintained;

e Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial

statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment;

e International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been
followed in preparation of financial statements and any departures therefrom have been
adequately disclosed and explained;

e The system of the internal control is sound in design and has been effectively

implemented and monitored;

¢ There are no significant doubts upon the company’s ability to continue as a going

concern;
¢ Key operating and financial data of last six years has been included in the Annual Report;
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e Information about taxes and levies is given in the respective notes to the Financial

Statements;

¢ During the year the company has formed a 100% owned subsidiary by the name of
Ghandhara DF (Pvt.) Limited. The purpose of establishing the company is to exclusively
undertake the CKD business of Dongfeng vehicles.

e The value of investments made by the staff retirement funds as per their respective

audited accounts are given below:

Value of investment Year ended
Provident Fund Rs.30.746 million June 30, 2012

e No trading in the shares of the Company was carried out by the Directors, CFO,
Company Secretary, their spouses and minor children.

Meetings of Board

During the year 2012-13, five Board meetings were held. Attendances by each Director are as

follows:

S.No. Name of Director No. of Meetings Attended
1. Mr. Raza Kuli Khan Khattak 3
2. Lt.Gen (Retd.) Ali Kuli Khan Khattak 4
3. Mr. Ahmed Kuli Khan Khattak 4
4. Mr. Jamil A. Shah 5
5 Mr. Mushtag Ahmed Khan (FCA) 1
6. Chaudhry Sher Muhammad 5
7 Mr. Muhammad Zia 1
8. Syed Haroon Rashid 3
9. Mr. Larbi Hbil -

Leave of absence was granted to the Directors who could not attend the Board Meetings.
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Election of Directors and reappointment of Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Raza Kuli Khan Khattak

Mr. Jamil A. Shah

Chaudhry Sher Muhammad
Mr. Muhammad Zia

Syed Haroon Rashid

Mr. Larbi Hbil

oG Ny b e W N

the Board decides to renew his remuneration.

Audit Committee

1. Mr. Muhammad Zia

2. Lt.Gen.(Retd.) Ali Kuli Khan Khattak
3.

4. Mr. Jamil Ahmed Shah

Chaudhary Sher Mohammad

The following nine persons were elected Directors of the Company for a fresh term of three

years effective from 19 February, 2013 in the Election of Directors held on that date:-

Lt.Gen (Retd.) Ali Kuli Khan Khattak
Mr. Ahmed Kuli Khan Khattak

Mr. Mushtaq Ahmed Khan (FCA}

The newly elected Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting on 1¥ March, 2013, has re-
appointed Mr. Ahmed Kuli Khan Khattak, the Chief Executive of the Company with effect from
1* March, 2013 for a term of three years.

He is entitled to the same remuneration as per his immediately preceding term, until such time

Directors Mr. Raza Kuli Khan Khattak and Lt.Gen.(Retd.) Ali Kuli Khan Khattak are interested
in the appointment of CEO by virtue of being close relatives.

With the election of the new Board, the Audit Committee, was re-established for three years

and the following Directors were unanimously appointed on the Committee:-

Chairman
Member
Member
Member
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Meetings of Audit Committee

During the year 2012-13, four Audit Committee meetings were held. Attendances by each

member are as follows:

S.No. Name of Director No. of Meetings Attended
1. Lt.Gen (Retd.) Ali Kuli Khan Khattak 1
2, Chaudhry Sher Muhammad 4
3. Mr, Jamil A, Shah 4
4, Mr. Mushtaq Ahmed Khan (FCA) 1

Leave of absence was granted to the Directors who could not attend the Board Meetings.

Human Resource and Remuneration Committee
Consequent upon the election of the new Board of Directors, the Human Resource and
Remuneration Committee was re-established for three years. It was unanimously decided to have

the following Directors on the Committee.

1. Lt.Gen. (Retd.) Ali Kuli Khan Khattak Chairman
2. Mr. Ahmed Kuli Khan Khattak Member
3. Mr. Jamil Ahmed Shah Member
4, Mr. Muhammad Zia Member

Holding Company
Bibojee Services (Pvt.) Limited with 62.32% shares is the holding Company of Ghandhara

Nissan Limited.

Subsequent Events

No material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the Company have taken
place between the end of the financial year and the date of the report.

Pattern of Shareholding
The pattern of shareholding as on 30™ June 2013 of the company is included in the Annual
Report.
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Auditors

The present Auditors M/s Hameed Chaudhri & Co. Chartered Accountants and M/s. Muniff
Ziauddin & Co. Chartered Accountants, retire, and being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment.

For and on behalf of the
Board of Directors

Ahmed Kuli Khan Khattak

Karachi: 30 September, 2013 Chief Executive
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AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

We have audited the annexed balance sheet of Ghandhara Nissan Limited as at June 30, 2013 and the related profit
and loss account, cash flow statement and statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof,
for the year then ended and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of
our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

It is the responsibility of the Company's management to establish and maintain a system of internal control, and
prepare and present the above said statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards and the
requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these statements based
on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan. These standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the above said statements are free of
any material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the above said statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting policies and significant
estimates made by management, as well as, evaluating the overall presentation of the above said statements. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion and, after due verification, we report that:

(a) in our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Ordinance,
1984;

(b) in our opinion:

(i) the balance sheet and profit and loss account together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity
with the Companies Ordinance, 1984, and are in agreement with the books of account and are further in
accordance with accounting policies consistently applied;

(ii) the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the Company's business; and

(iii) the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred during the year were in accordance
with the objects of the Company;

(c) in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the balance sheet,
profit and loss account, cash flow statement and statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming
part thereof conform with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and, give the information
required by the Companies Ordinance, 1984, in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view
of the state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2013 and of the profit, its cash flows and changes in equity for
the year then ended; and

(d) In our opinion no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).

HAMEED CHAUDHRI & CO. MUNIFF ZIAUDDIN & CO
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Osman Hameed Chaudhri Mohammad Moin Khan

Karachi ; 30" September 2013 Karachi ; 30® September 2013
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BALANCE SHEET

AS AT JUNE 30, 2013 2013 5015
ASSETS Note — Rupees in '000 —
Non current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5 1,326,108 1,382,669
Intangible assets 6 158 211
Long term investments 7 422,190 394,182
Long term deposits 8 6,709 7,726
1,755,165 1,784,788
Current assets
Stores, spares and loose tools 9 32,268 35,990
Stock-in-trade 10 295,470 565,196
Trade debts 11 305,183 246,889
Loans and advances 12 18,437 13,934
Prepayments 13 11,602 10,215
Other receivables 14 27,822 37,748
Taxation - net 48,630 11,894
Bank balances 15 52,528 33,452
791,940 955,318
Total assets 2,547,105 2,740,106
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital and reserves
Share capital 16 450,025 450,025
Share premium 40,000 40,000
Item credited directly in equity by an Associate 61,116 59,767
Unappropriated profit 108,409 49,226
Total equity 659,550 599,018
Surplus on Revaluation of Fixed Assets 17 1,014,770 1,030,838
Linabilities
Non current liahilities
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease 18 i 1,115
Long term deposits 19 9,611 9,611
Staff benefits 20 90,828 89,198
Deferred taxation 21 306 7,973
100,856 107,897
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 22 442,993 339,938
Accrued mark-up 23 13,776 21,043
Short term finances 24 134,592 406,131
Rumming finances under mark-up arrangements 25 179,419 150,738
Current portion of long term financing 26 - 77,778
Current portion of liabilities against assets
subject to finance lease 18 1,149 6,725
771,929 1,002,353
Total liabilities 872,785 1,110,250
Contingencies and commitments 27
Total equity and Liabilities 2,547,105 2,740,106

The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Note
Revenue - net 28
Cost of sales 29
Gross profit
Distribution cost 30
Administrative expenses 3
Other income 32
Other expenses 33
Profit from operations
Finance cost 34
Share of profit / (loss) of an Associated Company
Profit / (loss) before taxation
Taxation 35
Profit / (loss) after taxation
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year
Basic and diluted earnings / (loss) per share 36

Chief Executive

18 | GHANDHARA NISSAN LIMITED

2013 2012
— Rupees in '000 —

1,852,238 1,388,002
(1,626373)  (1,257,424)

225,865 130,578
(18,559) (21,387)
(117,836) (109,021)

10,347 25,730
(1,328) .
98,489 25,900

(80,578) (109,137)

The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.

17,911 (83,237)
28,008 (14,446)
45,919 (97,683)
(7,534) 11,715
38,385 (85,968)
38,385 (85,968)
— Rupees -

0.85 (1.91)
Director




CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit / (loss) before taxation
Adjustments for non-cash charges and other items:
Depreciation and amortisation
Interest income
Finance cost
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Exchange loss
Share of (profit) / loss of an Associated Company
Provision for gratuity
Payable balances written back
Operating profit before working capital changes
Decrease / (increase) in current assets:
Stores, spares and loose tools
Stock-in-trade
Trade debts
Loans and advances
Prepayments

Other receivables

Increase/ (decrease) in trade and other payables
Cash generated from operations
Gratuity and compensated absences paid
Finance cost paid
Taxes paid
Net cash generated from operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Fixed capital expenditure
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Interest income received
Long term deposits - net
Net cash generated from investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Long term financing - repaid
Lease finances - repaid
Short term finances - net
Running finances - net
Net cash used in financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents - at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents - at end of the year

The annexed notes from 1 o 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Executive

2013 2012
— Rupees in "000 —
45,919 (97,683)
58,222 62,275
(1,125) (1,348)
77,354 100,266
(1,046) (10,446)
1,650 6,836
(28,008) 14,446
9,744 10,112
(3,942) -
158,768 84,458
3,722 85
269,726 (34,495)]
(58,294) 281,885
@,503) 2,697
(1,387 10,981
9,926 36,953
219,190 292,712
105,347 (32,035)
483,305 345,135
(8,114) (3,587)
(84,621) (106,880)
(45,858) (39,706)
344,712 194,962
(2,414) 22,739)|
1,852 29,656
1,125 1,348
1,017 4,365
1,580 12,630
(77,778) (59,751)
(6,580) (10,481)
(271,539) (61,285)
28,681 (73,627)
(327,216) (205,144)
19,076 2,448
33,452 31,004
52,528 33,452
Director
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Item
credited Unappro-
fah"t:l i::m directlyin  pristed Total
a P equity by an profit
Associate
Rupees in '"000

Balance as at July 1, 2011 450,025 40,000 58,418 114,349 662,792
Total comprehensive loss

for the year - - - (85,968) (85,968)
Surplus on revaluation of fixed

assets realised during the year

(net of deferred taxation) on

account of incremental

depreciation - - - 20,845 20,845
Effect of item directly credited

in equity by an Associated

Company - - 1,349 - 1,349
Balance as at June 30, 2012 450,025 40,000 59,767 49,226 599,018
Total comprehensive income

for the year - - - 38,385 38,385
Surplus on revaluation of fixed

assets realised during the year

(net of deferred taxation) on

account of incremental

depreciation - - - 20,798 20,798
Effect of item directly credited

in equity by an Associated

Company - - 1,349 - 1,349
Balance as at June 30, 2013 450,025 40,000 61,116 108,409 659,550
The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Chief Executive Director
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

1. THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

Ghandhara Nissan Limited (the Company) was incorporated on August 8, 1981 in Pakistan as a private
limited campany and subsequently converted into a public limited company on May 24, 1992. The
registered office of the Company is situated at Ghandhara House, 109/2 Clifton, Karachi. Its
manufacturing facilities are located at Port Qasim, Karachi. The Company's shares are listed on Karachi
and Islamabad Stock Exchanges.

The principal business of the Company is assembly / progressive mamifacture of Nissan passenger Cars,
UD Trucks and Buses, import and marketing of Nissan vehicles and assembly of other vehicles under
contract agreement.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such Intermational Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board as are notified
under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, provisions of and directives issued under the Companies
Ordinance, 1984. In case requirements differ, the provisions or directives of the Companies Ordinance,
1984 shall prevail.

2.2 Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees which is the functional currency of the
Company and figures are rounded off to the nearest thousand of rupees unless otherwise specified.

2.3 Initial application of standards, amendments or an interpretation to existing standards

2.3.1 Amendments to published standards effective in the current year

Certain amendments to approved accounting standards are effective for accounting periods beginning on
July 1, 2012 but are considered not to be relevant or to have any significant effect on the Company's
operations and are, therefore, not detailed in these financial statements.

2.3.2 Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and
have not been early adopted by the Company

The following new standards and amendments to published standards are not effective (although
available for early adoption) for the financial year beginning on or after July 1, 2012 and have not been

early adopted by the Company:

(a) Anmal improvements to IFRSs 2011 are applicable on accounting periods beginning on or after January
1, 2013. This set of amendments includes changes to five standards: IFRS 1, “First time adoption’, IAS
1, ‘Financial statement presentation’, IAS 16, ‘Property, plant and equipment’, IAS 32, ‘Financial
instruments; Presentation’ and IAS 34, ‘Interim financial reporting’. The application of these
amendments have no material impact on the Company’s financial statements.
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IFRS 7 (Amendments), ‘Financial instruments: Disclosures’, on offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities is applicable on accounting periods begiming on or after Janmary 1, 2013. The amendment
includes new disclosures to facilitate comparison between those entities that prepare IFRS financial
statements to those that prepare financial statements in accordance with US GAAP. The Company shall
apply these amendments from July 1, 2013 and does not expect to have a material impact on its financial
statements.

IFRS 9 - ‘Financial instruments - classification and measurement’. This is applicable on accounting
periods beginning on ar after January 1, 2015. This standard on classification and measurement of
financial assets and financial liabilities will replace IAS 39, ‘Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement’. IFRS 9 has two measurement categories: amortised cost and fair value. All equity
instruments are measured at fair value. A debt instrument is measured at amortised cost only if the entity
is holding it to collect contractual cash flows and the cash flows represent principal and interest. For
liabilities, the standard retains most of the IAS 39 requirements. These include amortised-cost
accounting for most financial liabilities, with bifurcation of embedded derivatives.

The main change is that, in cases where the fair value option is taken for financial liabilities, the part of
a fair value change due to an entity’s own credit risk is recorded in other comprehensive income rather
than the income statement, unless this creates an accounting mismatch. This change will mainly affect
financial institutions. The Company shall apply this standard from July 1, 2015 and does not expect to
have a material impact on its financial staterments.

IAS 19 (Amendments), ‘Employee benefits’ is applicable on accounting periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2013. These amendments shall eliminate the carridor approach and calculate finance cost on
a net funding basis. The Company shall apply these amendments from July 1, 2013 and its impact on
retained earnings shall be Rs.2.072 million due to recognition of current unrecognised actuarial losses on
its defined benefit plan.

There are other new accounting standards, amendmenis to approved accounting standards and
interpretations that are mandatory for future years. However they are not considered relevant to the
Company and therefore are not expected to materially effect the financial statements of the Company for
accounting periods on the dates prescribed therein.

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for certain
classes of property, plant and equipment which have been included at revalued amounts and certain staff
retirement benefits which have been recognised at present value as determined by the Actuary.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

The areas where various assumptions and estimates are significant to the Company's financial
statements or where judgement was exercised in application of accounting policies are as follows:

- useful lives and residnal values of property, plant & equipment and intangible
assets (note 4.1 and 4.2);

- net realizable values of stores, spares & loose tools and stock-in-trade (note 4.5);
- staff benefits (note 4.10); and
- provision for taxation (note 4.12).




4.1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Property, plant and equipment

Owned assets

Property, plant and equipment except for frechold land, building on frechold land and plant & machinery
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Freehold land is stated at
revalued amount and building on freehold land and plant & machinery are stated at revalued amounts
less accurmilated depreciation. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
the asset.

Subsequent cost

Subsequent cost are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a secparate assct, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the entity and its cost can be reliably measured. Cost incurred to replace a component of an item of
property, plant and equipment is capitalised and the asset so replaced is retired from use. Normal repairs
and maintenance are charged to the profit and loss account during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation on all items of property, plant and equipment other than frechold land is charged to income
applying the reducing balance method at the rates stated innote 5. Depreciation on additions to property,
plant and equipment is charged from the month in which an asset is acquired or capitalised while no
depreciation is charged for the month in which the asset is disposed-off.

The depreciation method and useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment are reviewed
periodically and altered if circumstances or expectations have changed significantly. Any change is
accounted for as a change in accounting estimate by changing depreciation charge far the current and
future periods.

Disposal
Gains or losses on disposal or retirement of fixed assets are determined as the difference between the sale
proceeds and the carrying amounts of assets and are included in the profit and loss account.

Revaluation of assets

Revaluation is carried out with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of assets does not
differ materially from the fair value. Any surplus on revaluation of fixed assets is credited to the surplus
on revaluation of fixed assets account.

Leased assets

Fixed assets acquired by way of finance lease are stated at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value
and present value of the minimum lease payments at inception of the lease less accumlated depreciation
and impairment losses, if any.

Impairment

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that property, plant and
equipment may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such asscts are reviewed
to assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying values exceed
the respective recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and the
resulting impairment loss is taken to profit and loss account except for impairment loss on revalued
assets, which is adjusted against related revaluvation surplus to the extent that the impairment loss does
not exceed the surplus on revaluation of that asset.
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Intangible assets
Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and irpairment loss, if any.

Cost associated with developing or maintaining computer software programs are recognised as an
expense as incurred. Costs that are directly associated with identifiable and unique software products
controlled by the Company and will probably generate economic benefits exceeding costs beyond one
year, are recognised as intangible assets. Direct costs include staff cost, costs of the software
development team and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads.

Subsequent expenditure

Expenditure which enhance or extend the performance of computer software programs beyond their
original specifications are recognised as capital improvement and added to the original cost of the
software,

Amortisation
Intangible assets are amortised using the reducing balance method at the rate stated in note 6.

Investments
In an Associated Company

Entities in which the Company has significant influence but not control and which are neither its
subsidiaries nor joint ventures are Associates and are accounted for by using equity method of
accounting,

This investment is initially recognised at cost, thereafter the carrying amount is increased or decreased to
recognise the Company's share of profit or loss of an Associate. Share of post acquisition profit and loss
of an Associate is accounted in the Company's profit and loss account. Distribution received from
investee reduces the carrying amount of investment. The changes in Associate's equity which are not to
be recognised in the Associatd’s profit and loss account, are recognised directly in the equity of the
Company.

Available for sale

Investments which are intended to be held for an undefined period of time but may be sold in response to
the need for liquidity or changes in interest rates are classified as available for sale.

Subsequent to initial recognition at cost, these are remeasured at fair value, with any resultant gain or
loss being recognised in other comprehensive income. Gains or losses on available for sale investments
are recognised in other comprehensive income until the investments are sold or disposed off, or until the
investments are determined to be impaired, at that time cumulative gain or loss previously reported in
other comprehensive income is included in current period's profit and loss account.

Stores, spares and loose tools

Stores, spares and loosc tools are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of
inventory is based on weighted average cost less provision for obsolescence, if any. Items in transit are
stated at cost comprising of invoice value plus other charges thereon accumulated upto the reporting
date.

Stock-in-trade

These are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost of various classes of stock-in-trade
is determined as follows:




Stock category Valuation method

Completc Knock Down Kits Specific cost identification

Complete Built-up Units Specific cost identification

Local raw materials At cost on weighted average basis.
Work-in-process and fimshed goods At cost which comprises of raw materials,

import incidentals, direct labour and
appropriate portion of manufacturing
overheads.

Stock-in-transit At invoice price plus all charges paid
thereon upto the reporting date.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less costs
necessary to be incurred in order to make the sale.

4.6 Trade debts and other receivables

Trade debts are initially recognised at original imvoice amount which is the fair value of consideration to
be received in future and subsequently carried at cost less provision for doubtful debts, if any. Carrying
amounts of trade and other receivables are assessed at each reporting date and a provision is made for
doubtfiil receivables when collection of the amount is no longer probable. Debts considered irrecoverable
are written-off.

4.7 Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities outstanding for
more than 12 months as at the reporting date, in which case, they are classified as non-current assets.

4.8 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost. For the purpose of cash flow
statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise of balances with banks.

4.9 Mark-up bearing loans and borrowings

Mark-up bearing loans and borrowings are recorded at the proceeds received. Finance charges are
accounted for on accrual basis.

4.10 Staff benefits

(a) Defined benefit plan

The Company operates unfunded gratuity scheme under which the gratuity is payable on the cessation of
employment, subject to a mininum qualifying period of service. Provision for gratuity is made annually
to cover obligation under the scheme in accordance with the actuarial recommendations. Latest actuarial
valuation was conducted on June 30, 2013 on the basis of the projected unit credit method by an
independent Actuary.

The liabilities recognised in respect of gratnity scheme are the present values of the Company's
obligation under the scheme at the reporting date, together with adjustment for unrecognised actuarial
gains or losses.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions in
excess of 10% of the obligation are charged or credited to profit and loss account over the employees'
expected average remaining working life.
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Defined contribution plan

The Company operates defined contribution plan (i.e. recognised provident fund scheme) for all its
permanent employees. The Company and the employees make equal monthly contributions to the fund at
the rate of 8.33% of the basic salary and cost of living allowance. The assets of the fund are held
separately under the control of trustees.

Employees compensated absences

Employees' entitlements to annual leaves are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is
made for the estimated liability for anmmal leaves as a result of services rendered by employees upto the

reporting date.
Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated at their cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in
future for goods and services, whether or not billed to the Company.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of current tax payable, adjustments, if any, to provision for tax
made in previous years arising from assessments framed during the year for such years and deferred tax.

Current

Provision of current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the
prevailing law for taxation of income, The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates
or tax rates expected to apply to the profit for the year, if enacted.

Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary
differences arising from differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation of the taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit shall be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences
reverse based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively emacted by the reporting date.
Deferred tax is charged or credited in the profit and loss account, except in the case of items credited or
charged to equity in which case it is included in equity.

Finandial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument and derecognised when the Company loses control of
contractual rights that comprise the financial assets and in the case of financial liabilities when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss on derecognition
of financial assets and financial liabilities is included in the profit and loss account for the year.




Financial instruments carried on the balance sheet includes deposits, trade debts, loans & advances,
other receivables, bank balances, long term financing, liabilities against assets subject to finance lease,
long term deposits, trade and other payables, accrued mark-up, short term finances and running finances.
All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of consideration
given and received respectively. These financial assets and liabilitics are subsequently measured at fair
value, amortised cost or cost as the case may be. The particular recognition methods adopted are
disclosed in the individual policy statements associated with each item.

4.14 OfF-setting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle either ona
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

4.15 Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. Provisions are reviewed at
each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Contingent assets are not recognised and are also not disclosed unless an inflow of economic benefits is
probable and contingent liabilities are not recognised and are disclosed unless the probability of an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

4.16 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Reverme is measured at the fair value of
the consideration received or receivable and is reduced for allowances such as taxes, duties, sales returns
and commission. Revenue from different sources is recognised on the following basis:

Trading

- Vehicles are treated as sold when invoiced and delivered. Commission income is recognised on
the basis of shipment.

- Spare part sales are recorded on the basis of dispatches made to the customers.
Manufacturing
- Vehicles are treated as sold when invoiced and dispatched to customers.

Other
- Return on bank deposits is accounted for on accrual basis.

4.17 Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use. All other borrowing costs are charged to income in the period in which they are incurred.
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Foreign currency translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into reporting currency at the rates of exchange
prevailing on the date of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated into reporting currency equivalents using year end foreign exchange rates. Non monetary
assets and liabilities are translated using exchange rate that existed when the values were determined.
Exchange differences on foreign currency translations are taken to profit and loss account currently.

Impairment loss

The carrying amounts of the Company's assets are reviewed at each reporting date to identify
circumstances indicating occurrence of impairment loss or reversal of provisions for impairment losses.
If any indications exist, the recoverable amounts of such asse{s are estimated and impairment losses or
reversals of impairment losses are recognised in the profit and loss account. Reversal of impairment loss
is restricted to the original cost of the asset.

Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic
EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares cutstanding during the period.

Dividend and appropriation to reserves

Dividend and other appropriations to reserves are recognised in the period in which they are approved.

Segment reporting

Segment information is presented on the same basis as that used for internal reporting purposes by the
Chief Operating Decision Maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segments. On the basis of its internal reporting structure, the Company considers itself
to be a single reportable segment; however, certain information, as required by the approved accounting
standards, is presented in note 42 to these financial statements.




£€ 73 73 0T 0z []3 [ 3 [ [ or
g0T'9ZE'T 988 68¢ 199 BI8T 195°6C  €EL T6¥'€ 998°SRY & 9L TIY 579 D0S€LE
(sei'918)  (191'9) (859°) {ssz'q) Gor'nD (9L'L9)  (E1¥D) ®r'y  (ree'eoD - (zzL'se) (eps'®) e
€88°WO°T  LPODT LY0'S 9168 182% 6TE'L9 oI 656'F 061's65 - 891°L1S 000°s1 00S°ELE
S0T'9ZE'T 988 685 199 BIST 19§°6C  EEL 16¥°€ 908°¢RY = OPLTIY ISF'9 DOSELE
(691°3¢) 1) (161 (osz) G o) (% (7] (gLs'st) - (Ls1'w) (L1 -
= = = = (160°8) 160°8 = - - - - - -
- - - - 7998 (299°8) = = B = = = =
2 2 2 - Eseior) || gsi'on - - - - - - -
(908) - - = = (908) = = = = - = :
98E°T 3 3 2 B 38E°T - 2 - g Z - -
(F61°€) - = = = (P61°€) = = & . - = .
Fiv'T 811 9Lif Tzl = 869°T E = & = = & B
699'TRE' T £8T'L ¥l 618 LES'El  £69°ST  #18 ey 8EF1IS - h6'Erl FLT'L 00S*ELE
699°TBE'T €811 ¥OT 618 LEOET  €£69%ST IS e SEVTIS - £r6'evb PLT'L D0S'ELE
re6'97)  (OpL'D) (Lov'y) (SL6°L) wee'n) (Lt (eeD (ss6’0y)  (zsi'ew) E (sze'er) (oz8's) 7
£99°SKY°T  676% 1i8% P6Lg PEO'IT  TLOTE oI 656"t 061°565 “ s9¥'LIS 00051 00S°ELE
699°7TBE'T €811 POl 618 LE9'ET €696  PIS WEY SEF'TIS = Y6 Er PLI'L 00S'ELE
(s0Z'79) (13g} (6¥) {sor) crze)  (606'e) (16) (160'7) (1¥5°9T) (1eg) (co£°eT) (6L) 5
- - . - biz6)  vLT6 = = - = . - -
g g c 5 LAY CTAWA) 8 = g s - = 8
- - - - (osv'or) | ocr'or - - - - - - -
(o1Z'61) > > = 5 (o1.1) = = 5 (00s's) n = z
RE0°II - - - - £€9°01 - - - Sof - - -
(8+Z'06) - - = # (ere'12) = = = (506'8) - = -
6ELTT S08 2 - 41 T96°T1 - & ozr's 2 % - 5
SPE'IPFT  6SL €51 ¥l YO9°LT  9L0%81 €06 sSr's 655°6S 1£8°8 BOE'I9F 1L6°L 00S°ELE
SPETHF'T  65L €51 Y1 FO9'LT  SLO'BT S06 SEP°S 655°67S 1€8°¢ 80£" Lo LL6'L 00S'ELE
zg'nin  (59E'®) Gy {0is'L) ®ee's) (ze's) (v Gos'st)  (11T'L8) L) (69108} (6z0°D) -
TLU'ESO' T #21'6 1L8% $6L TE6OE  £00'WP  9FIE 656'F OLL'O8S $06'8 89t'L1S 000°S1 00S'ELE
000, W sdnyg
ki yowdmbs  womdmba peswr]  poump g [ Amuppem  Bmpymg u__s____a_s p ps| pu|
b PR PWO IO L Aquessy  pmNLY  OMO " pogems  progeeix
amumg Suppmyg

SOPA

(20) age wopmrRIdaq

amEA Yooq 2N

uonErdxdap porehmmay

1500 / BOTEIRASY

€107 ‘0f Sunf 3¢ 5y

an[eA y00q jsu Bajso[)

Teaf o) sy 2l uanersadagy

woneanbp payeIEIMooe -
1900 -
POUMO O} PISER] THOY BRISTRL],

uonEroadsp pajejrEmmage -
1800 -
spesodsiy
SUORIPPY
anea yooq jeu Sumdp
€10T ‘0 unf papus Teax
IM[A Jooq N
wonersadap pareMumoy
1500 / UOYEOTRAT]
TT0Z “0€ unf 18 5Y
anfea yooq 15U Saiso))
TeaA o, 1oy S8xeno monwrozIdaq

wonEarbp paJe[TEONIIE -
1800 -
POUMO 0} POSEO] WOY SRISUBL],

TonEISAIdsD PARITNIe -
1500 -
spesodsiy
STCNIPPY
onrea yooq ju Supodp
Z10Z *0£ Mny papis Jwa X
anpeA Yooq 3N
woerdxdop poremmmaoy
1500 / BOTIETRASY
10T T Amf 3y

INTAIINOA NV INVT ‘ATHAEJONd

GHANDHARA NISSAN LIMITED | 29




5.1 Freehold land, tuilding on freehold land and plant & machinery were revalued on June 30, 1997, June
30, 1999, Jammary 1, 2004 and June 30, 2009. Had the property, plant and equipment been recognised

under the cost model, the carrying amount of each revalued class of property, plant and equipment
would have been as follows:

2013 2012
—— Rupees in '000 —
Frechold land 61,456 61,456
Building on frechold land 134,403 141,477
Plant and machinery 142,521 150,022
5.2  Depreciation charge for the year has been
allocated as follows:

Cost of sales 53,021 54,196
Administrative expenses 5,148 8,009

58,169 62,205

53  The Company's present and future land, building on frechold land and plant & machinery are mortgaged/
pledged / hypothecated upto Rs.1,247 million (2012: Rs.1,230.29 million) with banks.

5.4  The detail of property, plant and equipment disposed-off are as follows:

Accumu- oy Mode
Particular of lated Sale . Particular of
Cost book Gain of
assets deprec- proceeds buyers
value disposal
latlon
e neeeee RUp@8s In ‘000 --———semmee—a
Vehicles
Nissan Sunny 828 584 244 599 355 Negotiation Mr. Bashir Ahmed Abbasi, Ex-employee
Rexton 1,800 1,240 560 600 40 Negotiation Mr. Shah Sikandar, Sector F-10/2,
Islamabad
Suzuki Bolan 283 282 1 31 310 Tender Mr. Muhammad Saijjid, Gulshan-e-Igbal,
Karachi
Suzuki Bolan 283 282 1 342 341 Tender Mr. Khadim Hussain, Jinnah Staff
Colony, Karachi
June 30,2013 3,184 2,388 806 1,852 1,046
June 30,2012 30,248 11,038 19,210 29,656 10,446
6. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 2013 2012
Note —— Rupees in '000 —
These represent computer sofiwares.
Cost 500 500
Accurmulated amortisation
At beginning of the year 289 219
Add: charge for the year 3 53 70
At end of the year 342 289
Net book value 158 211
Rate of amortisation (%) 25 25
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71

7.2

7.3

LONG TERM INVESTMENTS 2013 2012
At in' —_

Associated Company Note Rupees in '000

Ghandhara Industries Limited - Equity basis

5,166,168 (2012: 5,166,168) ordinary shares

of Rs.10 each
Cost 7.1 92,635 92,635
Share of post acquisition losses (17,543) {45,551)
75,092 47,084
Share of items directly credited in the
equity of Associated Company 61,116 59,767
Share of surplus on revaluation of fixed
assets of Associated Company 301,481 302,830
Dividend received to date (15,499) {15,49%)
422,190 394,182
Others - available for sale
Automotive Testing & Training Center (Private) Limited
187,500 (2012: 187,500) ordinary shares of Rs.10 each - cost 1,875 1,875
Less: Provision for impairment in the value of investment (1,875) {1,875)
422,190 394,182

The Company's holding in the investee company’'s shares as at June 30, 2013 was 24.25% (2012:
24.25%).

Key information about an Associate

The following information is from unaudited financial statements of the investee company for the nine
months period ended March 31, 2013,
As at March As at March

31,2013 31,2012
-— Rupees in '000 —
Assets 4,123,583 4218,271
Liabilities 2,395,182 2,605,371
Unappropriated profit / (accumulated loss) 69,081 {51,983)
Nine months period
March 31, March 31,
2013 2012
-— Rupees in 000 —-
Profit / (loss) before taxation 118,178 {84,011)
Profit / (loss) after taxation 92,680 {53,905)

The market value of investment as at June 30, 2013 was Rs,94.799 million (2012: Rs.33.580 million),
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10.

10.1

11.

11.1

11.2
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LONG TERM DEPOSITS 2013 2012
—— Rupees in "000 —
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited 25 25
Deposits against lease facilities 440 2,430
Utility deposits 6,144 5,171
Others 100 100
6,709 7,726
STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS
Stores 32,153 35,415
Spares and loose tools 115 575
32,268 35,990
STOCK-IN-TRADE
Raw materials
In hand 48,727 281,287
In transit 168,567 200,484
217,294 481,771
‘Work in process 24,320 25,579
Finished goods
Vehicles - Trucks / Buses & 52,3%4
Complete Built-up Units - Trucks 47,239 1,198
Spare parts 6,617 4,254
53,856 57,846
295,470 565,196

The present and future stock-in-trade, trade debts and receivables aggregating Rs.1,715 million (2012:
Rs.1,332 million) are under pledge / joint hypothecation with banks against short term finances and

running finances.

TRADE DEBTS - Unsecured, 2013 2012
considered good Note —— Rupees in '000 —
Vehicles and assembly charges 11.1 302,104 244,282
Spare parts 3,079 2,607
305,183 246,889
Trade debts include the following amounts due
from Associated Companies:
Ghandhara Industries Limmted 69,151 84,459
Rehman Cotton Mills Limited 57 -
69,208 84,459
The ageing of the trade debts receivable from related parties as at the reporting date are as follows:
2013 2012
—— Rupees in "000 —
Up to 3 months - 30,750
3 to 6 months 69,151 44,277
more than 6 months 57 9,432
69,208 84,459




12. LOANS AND ADVANCES - Unsecured, 2013 2012

considered good Note —— Rupees in '000 —
Advances to:
- executives 12.1 - 603
- employees 3,084 3,912
- suppliers, contractors and others 15,353 9,419
18,437 13,934

12.1 Reconciliation of carrying amount of
loans to executives:

Balance at beginning of the year 603 920
Less: recovered during the year 603 317
Balance at end of the year - 603

12.2 The maximum amount due from executives at the end of any month during the year was Rs.0.500
million (2012: Rs.0.750 million),

13. PREPAYMENTS 2013 2012
Note —— Rupees in '000 —
Prepaid
- rent [Bibojee Services (Private) Limited -
the Holding Company] 8,550 9,000
- insurance 13.1 3,052 1,215
11,602 10,215
13.1 Includes Rs.Nil (2012: Rs.1.215 million) which relates to Universal Insurance Company Limited - an
Associated Company.
14. OTHER RECEIVABLES - Considered good 2013 2012
Note —— Rupees in ‘000 —
Sales tax refundable / adjustable 12,480 24,380
Bank guarantee margin 613 492
Security deposits and earnest money 9,239 6,259
Commission 14.1 - 3,408
Others 5,490 3,208
27,822 37,748
14.1 Corresponding figure Included R5.0.214 million due from Nissan Motor Company Limited - Japan (a
related party).
15. BANK BALANCES 2013 2012
Note —— Rupees in '000 —
Cash at banks in:
- current accounts 46,523 27,602
- deposit accounts 15.1 9,917 9,762
56,440 37,364
Less: Provision for doubtful bank balance 15.2 3,912 3,912
52,528 33,452
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15.1 These, during the year, carry mark-up at the rates of 9.00% and 11.50% (2012: 11.50%) per anmum.

15.2 This represents provision made against bank balance held with Indus Bank Limited whose operations
were ceased by the State Bank of Pakistan and is under liquidation. The above balance is net of
Rs.42.586 million deposited in the deposit account and margin account against four letters of credit due
in May and June 2000. Despite full payments and several reminders, the payment of above letters of
credit has not been made to the supplier of goods. The Company considers that it has discharged its
obligation against the said letters of credit.

16. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorized capital 2013 2012

---— Rupeeas in "000 ---—
80,000,000(2012: 80,000,000) ordinary shares of

Rs.10 each 800,000 800,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
2013 2012

-- No. of shares --
14,800,000 14,800,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each
fully paid in cash 148,000 148,000

200,000 200,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each
issued as fully paid

bonus shares 2,000 2,000
30,002,500 30,002,500 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each

issued for acquisition 300,025 300,025
45,002,500 45,002,500 450,025 450,025

16.1 The Company is a subsidiary of Bibojee Services (Private) Limited which holds 62.32%
(2012: 62.32%) share capital of the Company.

16.2 Ordinary shares held by related parties other 2013 2012
than the Holding Compamny as at year end: — Number of shares —
Universal Insurance Company Limited 5,000 5,000
UD Trucks Corporation, Japan 3,647,090 3,647,090
3,652,090 3,652,090
17. SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF 2013 2012
FIXED ASSETS - Net Note —— Rupees in "000 —
Surplus on revaluation of Company's fixed assets 17.1 713,289 728,008
Share of surplus on revaluation of fixed assets
of an Associated Company 7 301,481 302,830
1,014,770 1,030,838
17.1 Surplus on revaluation of Company's assets
Balance at beginning of the year 951,987 984,057
Less: transferred to unappropriated profit on
account of incremental depreciation for the year 31,997 32,070
919,990 951,987
Less: related deferred tax of:
- balance at beginning of the year 223,979 235,204
- incremental depreciation for the year (11,199) {11,225)
- effect of change in tax rate (6,079) =
- balance at end of the year 206,701 223,979
Balance at end of the year 713,289 728,008
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18. LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBJECT 2013 2012

TO FINANCE LEASE —— Rupees in 000 —
Balance as at July 1, 7,840 18,321
Add: assets acquired during the preceding year = 552
Less: repaid/ adjusted during the year 6,580 11,033

1,260 7,840
Less: current portion grouped under current liabilities 1,149 6,725
Balance as at June 30, 111 1,115

18.1 These represent vehicles acquired under finance lease / diminishing mmsharakah arrangements from
various financial institutions. Rentals are payable on monthly and quarterly basis. These finance
facilities, during the year, were subject to finance cost at the rates ranging from 12.63% to 18.00%
(2012: 15.05% to 18.81%) per anmmum. These facilities are secured against title of the leased vehicles in
the name of lessor. The Company intends to exercise its option to purchase the leased vehicles upon
completion of the lease terms.

The future mininmm lease payments to which the Company is committed under the agreements will be
due as follows:

Upto From one Upto From one
Particulars one to five 2013 one to five 2012
year years year years

Rupess in "000

Minimum lease payments 1,202 112 1,314 7,206 1,184 8,390
Less: finance cost allocated
to future periods 53 1 54 481 69 550
Present value of minimum
lease payments 1,149 111 1,260 6,725 1,115 7,840
19, LONG TERM DEPOSITS 2013 2012
Note —— Rupees in '000 —
Dealers' deposit 19.1 9,000 9,000
Vendors 111 111
Others 500 500
9,611 9,611

19.1 These deposits are interest free and are not refindable during subsistence of dealership.

20. STAFF BENEFITS 2013 2012
Note —— Rupees in ‘000 —
Provision for gratuity 20.1 63,140 58,837
Provision for compensated absences 27,688 30,361
90,828 89,198

20.1 Provision for gratuity
Projected unit credit method, based on the following significant assumptions, is used for valuation:
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2013 2012

- discount rate 10.50% 13.00%

- expected rate of growth per annum in future salaries 10.50% 13.00%

- average expected remaining working life time of employees 11 years 11 years
The amount recognised in the balance sheet 2013 2012

is as follows: —— Rupees in '000 —
Present value of defined benefit obligation 60,895 48,553
Benefits payable 173 3,022
Unrecognised actuarial losses 2,072 7,262
Net liability at end of the year 63,140 58,837
Net liability at beginning of the year 58,837 51,306
Charge to profit and loss account 9,744 10,112
Payments made during the year (5,441) (2,581)
Net liability at end of the year 63,140 58,837

I
The movement in the present value of defined benefit
obligation is as follows:

Balance at beginning of the year 48,553 44,758
Current service cost 3,651 3,846
Interest cost 6,312 6,266
Benefits paid (2,468) (1,519)
Benefits due but not paid (125) -
Actuarial loss / (gain) 4,972 (4,798)
Balance at end of the year 60,895 48,553
Expense recognised in profit and loss account:

Current service cost 3,651 3,846
Interest cost 6,312 6,266
Actuarial gain recognised (219) -
Charge for the year 9,744 10,112

Comparison of present value of defined benefit obligation and experience adjustment on obligation for
five years is as follows:

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Rupees in '000
Present value of defined
benefit obligation 60,895 48,553 44,758 46,396 34,174
Experience adjustment
on obligation 4,972 (4,798) (4,812) 5,105 (3,371)

The Company's policy with regard to actuarial gains / losses is to follow the mininmmum recommended
approach under IAS 19 (Employce Benefits).

The expected gratuity expense for the year ending June 30, 2014 works-out to Rs.10.726 million (2013:
Rs.9.744 million).
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21.

22,

22.1

22.2

DEFERRED TAXATION - Net

The liability for deferred taxation comprises of
temporary differences relating to:
- accelerated tax depreciation allowance
- surplus on revaluation of fixed assets
- lease finances
- provision for gratuity
- provision for compensated absences
- provision for bank balances

- minimum tax recoverable against
normal tax charge in firture years

- unused tax losses

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade creditars

Bills payable

Accrued liabilities

Refundable - CKD / CBU business
Customers' credit balances
Commission

Unclaimed gratuity

Dealers' deposits against vehicles
Custom duties payable

Due to related parties

Withholding tax

‘Workers' profit participation fund
‘Workers' welfare fund

Retention money

Unclaimed dividend

Dealer deposit payable on cancellation of dealership
Others

Includes Rs.15.463 million (2012: Rs.10.672 million) which pertains to a key management person.

Due to related parties

UD Trucks Corporation - Japan
Bibogjee Services (Private) Limited
Universal Insurance Company Limited

The General Tyre and Rubber Company
of Pakistan Limited

Gammon Pakistan Limited
‘Wagqf-e-Kuli Khan

2013 2012
Note —— Rupees in ‘000 —
52,753 54,514
206,701 223,979
530 2,029
(21,468) {20,593)
(9,414) {10,626)
(1,330) (1,369)
(49,502) {40,223)
(177,964) (199,738)
306 7,973
82,703 105,330
259,038 129,971
221 25,300 20,606
1,403 1,403
27,696 18,150
5,838 7,838
231 231
5,000 5,000
- 14,396
22.2 24,362 26,253
565 870
962 -
366 =
103 2,498
961 961
1,000 1,000
22.3 7,465 5,431
442,993 339,938
2013 2012
—— Rupees in 000 ——
5,742 3,787
- 2,044
3,708 -
1,904 7,623
623 1,372
12,385 11,427
24,362 26,253
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22.3

23,

24,

241

24.2

24.3

244
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Other liabilities include deposits and instalments under the Company's staff vehicle policy aggregating
Rs.0.355 million (2012: Rs.0.481 million).

ACCRUED MARK-UP 2013 2012
Note —— Rupees in ‘000 —
Mark-up accrued on:
- long term financing - 4,895
- short term finances 2,228 9,066
- running finances 11,548 7,082
13,776 21,043

SHORT TERM FINANCES - Secured
Finance against imported merchandise

- National Bank of Pakistan 24.1 53,601 -

- The Bank of Khyber 24.2 24,371 99,923
Payment against documents 71972 5903

- The Bank of Khyber - 41,966
Short term demand finance

- Faysal Bank 1.imited 24.3 44,883 53,363
Finance against trust receipts

- National Bank of Pakistan 24.4 11,737 210,879

134,592 406,131

The Company has arranged Finance against Imported Merchandise (FIM) of Rs.300 million from
National Bank of Pakistan. This facility is secured against effective pledge of imported goods and
carries mark-up at the rate of 3 months KIBOR plus 200 basis points. FIM is repayable within 120 days
of disbursement / creation. This finance facility is available upto October 31, 2013.

The Company has also arranged FIM of Rs. 100 million from the Bank of Khyber. The finance facility is
secured against effective pledge of imported consignments and carries mark-up at the rate of 3 months
KIBOR plus 300 basis points. FIM is adjustable within 120 days of disbursement / creation. This
finance facility is available upto December 31, 2013.

The Company had arranged short term loan of Rs.330 million from Faysal Bank Limited (the Bank)
against outstanding import bills. Originally this loan was repayable in monthly instabments of Rs.22
million each. The Company during the prior years had repaid instalments aggregating Rs.215 million
and balance of Rs.115 million was renewed by the Bank. The Company has made principle payments of
Rs.70.117 million till June 30, 2013 of this renewed finance facility. Year-end balance of this finance
facility has been again renewed by the Bank. This facility is secured against first pari passu charge of
Rs.367 million on stocks and receivables, ranking charge of Rs.434 million over stocks & receivables
and ranking charges of Rs.400 million on plant and machinery of the Company. The short term loan
carries mark-up at the rate of six months KIBOR plus 1.80% per anmm.

The Company has arranged Finance Against Trust Receipts (FATR) facility of Rs.300 million from
National Bank of Pakistan. FATR is repayable within 120 days from the date of its creation. The facility
is secured against duly signed trust receipts and cumnulative charge (equitable and hypothecation) over
the Company's land, building and plant & machinery for Rs.400 million and carries mark-up at the rate
of 3 months KIBOR. plus 2.00% per anmum, This finance facility is available upto October 31, 2013.




25,

25.1

26.

27.
27.1
27.2

273

28.

29,

RUNNING FINANCES UNDER MARK-UP 2013 2012
ARRANGEMENTS - Secured Note —— Rupees in '000 —

Balance as at June 30, 25.1 179,419 150,738

Running finance facilities available from commercial banks under mark-up arrangements aggregate to
Rs.423.535 million (2012:; Rs 225 million) and are secured by way of equitable, hypothecation and pari
passu charge over fixed and current assets of the Company. These, during the current financial year,
carry mark-up at the ratcs ranging from 11.28% to 13.95% (2012: 13.91% to 15.04%) per anmum, The
arrangements are expiring on October 31, 2013.

CURRENT PORTION OF LONG TERM FINANCING - Secured

National Bank of Pakistan, during prior year, had rescheduled overdue instalments aggregating
Rs.116.666 million. This rescheduled term finance was repayable in six equal quarterly instalment of
Rs.19.447 million each started from November 06, 2011 and carried mark-up at the rate of 3 months
KIBOR plus 2.5% per annum. The Company during the year has fully repaid this term finance on April
30, 2013.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
There was no known contingency as at June 30, 2013.

Commitment in respect of irrevocable letters of credit as at June 30, 2013 aggregate to Rs.455.004
million (2012: Rs.256.557 million).

Guarantees aggregating Rs.59.926 million (2012: Rs.4.162 million) are issued by banks of the Company
to various government and other institutions.

REVENUE - Net 2013 2012
Note —— Rupees in "000 —
Reverme - manufactured goods 1,719,408 1,564,379
Sales tax (237,755) (212,188)
Commission (16,075) {16,464)
1,465,578 1,335,727
Revenue - trading goods 470,266 60,481
Sales tax (53,953) (7,925)
Commission (29,653) (281)
386,660 52,275
1,852,238 1,388,002

COST OF SALES

Finished goods at beginning of the year 57,846 53,899
Cost of goods manufactured 29.1 1,212,881 1,221,920
Purchases - trading goods 409,502 39,451
1,622,383 1,261,371
Finished goods at end of the year (53,856) {57,846)
1,626,373 1,257,424
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29.1 Cost of goods manufactured

‘Work in process at beginning of the year
Raw materials and vendor parts consumed
Fabrication of contract vehicles

Stores and spares consumed

Salaries, wages and benefits
Transportation

Repair and maintenance

Depreciation

Material handling

Insurance

Communication

Rent, rates and taxes

Travelling and entertainment

Power generation costs

Printing, stationery and office supplies
Royalty expense

Plant security

Other manufacturing expenses

Work in process at end of the year

29.2 Raw materials and vendor parts consumed
Stocks at beginning of the year
Purchases

Stocks at end of the year

Note

29.2

29.3

5.2

2013 2012
—— Rupees in 000 —
25,579 23,655
946,952 991,202
9,450 7,042
13,830 14,713
117,024 96,213
11,566 9,956
6,688 5,036
53,021 54,196
97 59
6,451 6,096
554 568
296 533
1,020 1,942
34,589 26,790
641 500
3,862 4,086
3,701 3,410
1,880 1,502
1,237,201 1,247,49%
(24,320) (25,579)
1,212,881 1,221,920
281,287 124,540
714,392 1,147,949
995,679 1,272,489
(48,727) (281,287)
946,952 991,202

29.3 Salaries, wages and benefits include Rs.2.871 million (2012: Rs.2.979 million) and Rs.1.971 million
(2012: Rs.1.723 million) in respect of staff retirement gratuity and staff provident fund respectively.

30. DISTRIBUTION COST

Salaries, wages and benefits
Utilities

Insurance

Repair and maintenance
Travelling and entertainment
Telephone and postage
Vehicle running

Printing, stationery and office supplies
Rent of display centre
Security

Godown and forwarding
Sales promotion expenses
Others

Note
30.1

2013 2012

—— Rupees in "000 —
12,886 12,722
294 294
15 340
347 204
3,229 1,357
136 153
544 393
103 48
- 3,000
360 324
143 903
426 1,505
76 144
18,559 21,387

30.1 Salaries, wages and benefits include Rs.0.152 million (2012: Rs.0.158 million) and Rs.0.735 million
(2012: R5.0.613 million) in respect of staff retirement gratuity and staff provident fund respectively.
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31.

311

31.2

313

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 2013 2012

Note —— Rupees in '000 —

Salaries, wages and other benefits 311 75,574 68,192
Utilities 3,344 3,436
Rent, rates and taxes 7,476 8,376
Directors' fee 380 350
Insurance 1,663 2,304
Repairs and maintenance 1,007 1,313
Depreciation and amortisation 52&6 5201 8,079
Auditors’ remuneration 31.2 500 676
Advertising 561 444,
Travelling and conveyance 6,638 2,769
Legal and professional charges 1,749 1,983
Vehicle running 3,314 2,974
Telephone and postage 2,531 2,367
Printing and stationery 1,614 1,917
Subscription 1,576 1,543
Security expenses 709 858
Donation 313 958 124
Others 3,041 1,316

117,836 109,021

Salaries, wages and benefits include Rs.6.721 million (2012: Rs.6.975 miillion) and Rs.2.057 million
(2012: Rs.2.045 million) in respect of staff retirement gratuity and staff provident fund respectively.

2013 2012
Auditors' remuneration —— Rupees in '000 —
Hameed Chaudhri & Co. - audit fee 250 250
Muniff Ziauddin Junaidy & Co.
- audit fee 250 250
- other services - 176
250 426
500 676

Donation of Rs.0.958 million (2012: Rs.Nil) charged in these financial statements is payable to Wagf-e-
Kuli Khan, 2nd Floor, Gammon House, 400-2, Chour Chowk, Peshawar Road, Rawalpindi (the Trust).
Mr. Raza Kuli Khan Khattak, Chairman of the Company, Mr. Ahmed Kuli Khan Khattak, Chief
Executive of the Company and Lt. Gen. (Retd.) Ali Kuli Khan Khattak, Director of the Company, are
trustees of the Trust.

GHANDHARA NISSAN LIMITED | 41




32.

33.

34.

3s.
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42 | GHANDHARA NISSAN LIMITED

OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets

Interest income

Income from non-financial assets

Scrap sales

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Payable balances written back

Commission income

Others

OTHER EXPENSES
‘Workers' profit participation fund
‘Workers' welfare fund

FINANCE COST
Mark-up on:
- long term financing
- short term finances
- running finances
Lease finance charges
Exchange loss
Bank and other charges

TAXATION

Current
- for the year

- for prior year

Deferred
- relating to temporary differences
- resulting from reduction in tax rate

Note

5.4

351

2013 2012
—— Rupees in '000 —
1,125 1,348
1,814 8,753
1,046 10,446
3,942 -
705 3,815
1,715 1,368
9,222 24,382
10,347 25,730
962 -
366 «
1,328 .
4,926 16,513
39,965 52,557
32,042 29,654
421 1,542
1,650 6,836
1,574 2,035
80,578 109,137
9,314) (14,686)
192 (142)
9,122) (14,828)
6,930 26,543
(5.342) «
1,588 26,543
(7,534) 11,715

Provision for current taxation mainly represents minimum tax due under section 113 of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001, therefore, numeric tax reconciliation has not been presented in these financial

statements.




36.

36.1
37.

371

37.2

37.3

38.

EARNINGS / (LOSS) PER SHARE 2013 2012
- Basic and dihuted —— Rupees in "000 —
Net profit / (loss) for the year 38,385 (85,968)
— Number of shares —
Weighted average mumber of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year 45,002,500 45,002,500
—— Rupees ———
Earnings / (loss) per share 0.85 (1.91)

There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the Company.
REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVES

2013 2012

Chief . . Chief \ .
Exeeitive Director Executives Executive Director Executives

Rupees in "000

Managerial remuneration 9,000 3,600 33,828 9,000 3,600 23,728

Contribution to provident

fund 456 - 1,550 456 - 1,094
Gratuity 228 - 1,145 228 - 683
Utilities - - 2,439 - - 1,876

9,684 3,600 38,962 9,684 3,600 27,381

Number of persons 1 1 20 1 1 13

The Chief Executive is also entitled for the use of the Company maintained car, security expenses,
telephone expenses and medical expenses at actual. He is also entitled to receive other benefits as per
Company policy applicable to all management employees.

Director and certain Executives of the Company are also provided with free use of the Company
maintained vehicles.

Aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for meeting fee to Directors was Rs.0.380 miillion
(2012: Rs.0.350 million).

PLANT CAPACITY

Against the designed anmmal production capacity of 6,000 vehicles at car plant, on single shift basis, the
Company has assembled 636 (2012: 561) wvehicles of Land Rover and also processed 1,042 (2012:
1,034) Truck cabs through paint shop. Due to low demand of vehicles on account of economic slow
down, the plant capacity remained under-utilized. Against the production capacity of 2,500 trucks and
buses on single shift basis, the Company produced 1,146 (2012; 1,130) trucks and buses of Nissan and
Isuzu. Capacity of trucks and buses production facility also remained under-utilized due to low demand
on account of economic slow down.
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39. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties comprise of Holding Company, Associated Companies, directors of the Company,
companies in which directors are interested, staff retirement benefits, key management persomnel and
close members of the families of the directors & key management personnel. The Company in the normal
course of business carries out transactions with various related parties. There were no transactions with
key management personnel other than under the terms of employment and remmneration of key
management personnel as disclosed in note 37. Amounts due from and to related parties are shown under

receivables and payables. Significant transactions with related parties are as follows:

Name Nature of Nature of 2013 2012
relationship transaction === Rupees in ‘000 -
Bibojee Services Holding Rent of showroom - 3,000
(Private) Limited company Rent of head office 5,400 5,400
Sale of runway
sweepers 76,966 -
Universal Insurance Associated Insurance premium 6,349 11,474
Company Limited company Sale of parts - 10
The General Tyre and Associated Purchase of tyres,
Rubber Company of company tubes and flaps 15,959 35,590
Pakistan Limited
Bannu Woollen Mills Associated
Limited company Sale of paris 159 184
Ghandhara Industries Associated Contract assembly 140,662 121,278
Limited company Fabrication of vehicles 1,320 2,525
Sale of paris 2 3
Repair of vehicles 504 642
Reimbursement of
expenses - 1,425
UD Trucks Corporation, Related Royalty 3,862 4,086
Japan party Purchases of complete
knock down kits 527,919 696,577
Nissan Motor Company Related Purchases of complete
Limited, Japan party built up units - 24,809
Commission income - 214
Rehman Cotton Mills Associated
Limited company Sale of parts 117 -
Gammon Pakistan Associated
Limited company Office rent 1,500 1,500
Janana De Malucho Associated Sale of parts - 47
Textile Mills Limited company Earnest money received
and paid back for
sale of trucks 20,000 -
Staff provident fund Employees'
fund Contribution made 4,763 4,381
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40.

40.1

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has exposures to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
- credit risk;
- liquidity risk; and
- market risk (including foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk).

The board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and overview of Company's risk
management frame work. The board is also responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's
risk management policies.

Credit risk

Credit risk represents the financial loss that would be recognised at the reporting date if counter partics
fail completely to perform as contracted / fail to discharge an obligation / commitment that it has entered
ito with the Company.

Credit risk primarily arises from long term deposits, trade debts, loans and advances, other receivables
and balances with banks. To manage exposure to credit risk in respect of trade debts, management
performs credit reviews taking into account the customer's financial position, past experience and other
relevant factors. Where considered necessary, advance payments are obtained from certain parties.

Credit risk on bank balances is limited as the counter parties are banks with reasonably high crediting
ratings.

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at June 30, 2013 along with comparative is tabulated below:

2013 2012
—— Rupees in "000 ——
Long term deposits 6,709 7,726
Trade debts 305,183 246,889
Loans and advances 3,084 4,515
Other receivables 15,342 13,368
Bank balances 52,528 33,452
382,846 305,950
All the trade debts at the reporting date represents dormestic parties.
The ageing of trade debts at the reporting date is as follows:
2013 2012
—— Rupees in 000 —
Up to 3 months 193,915 187,032
3 to 6 months 95,712 14,531
more than 6 months 15,556 45,326
305,183 246,889

Based on past experience, consideration of financial position, past track records and recoveries, the
Company believes that trade debts past due over six months do not require any impairment.,
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40.2 Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall
duc. The Company's approach is to ensure, as far as possible, to always have sufficient liquidity to meet
its liabilities when due. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and cash
equivalent and ensuring the availability of adequate credit facilities. The Company's treasury
department aims at maintaining flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines available.

Financial lLiabilities in accordance with their contractual maturities are presented below:

Carrying Less than Benwesn 3jears

1to 5 and
amount 1 year
years above
June 30, 2013 memmnmnmmmmnee—== RUPEES iN "'000 =me—cmmmemeeeea-
Liabilities against assets
subject to finance lease 1,260 1,149 111 -
Long term deposits 9,611 - - 9,611
Trade and other payable 414,732 414,732 - -
Accrued mark-up 13,776 13,776 - -
Short term finances 134,592 134,592 - -
Running finances under
mark-up arrangements 179,419 179,419 - -
753,390 743,668 111 9,611

Carmrying Lessthan Between1 5 years

amount 1year to5 years and above

June 30, 2012 ———--———-- Rupees in ‘000 ——————-
Long term financing 77,778 77,778 - -
Liabilities against assets

subject to finance lease 7,840 6,725 1,115 -
Long term deposits 9,611 - - 9,611
Trade and other payable 306,522 306,622 - -
Accrued mark-up 21,043 21,043 - -
Short term finances 406,131 406,131 - -
Running finances under

mark-up arrangements 150,738 150,738 - -

979,663 968,937 1,115 9,611

40.3 Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and
equity prices will effect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The
objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures with acceptable
parameters, while optimising the return.

46 | GHANDHARA NISSAN LIMITED




(a) Currency risk
Currency rigk is the risk that fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company is exposed to currency risk on import of
raw materials, stores & spares and commission income denominated in U.S. Dollar, Japanese Yen and
Chinese Yuan Renminbi (RMB). The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk at the reporting date

is as follows:
Rupees Yen U.S.$ RMB
in ‘000
June 30, 2013
Bills payables 256,796 105,682 60 8,962
Rupees Yen U.S.$
________________ T SO0 s
June 30, 2012
Bills payables 129,971 52,767 715
Commission receivable (3,409) (2,879) -
Net exposure 126,562 49 888 715
The following significant exchange rates have been applied:
Balance sheet date rate
2013 2012
Yen to Rupee 0.9994/0.9974 1.184/1.187
U.S. $to Rupee 98.8/98.6 94.0/%4.2
RMB to Rupees 16.20 -

Sensitivity analysis
At the reporting date, if Rupee had strengthened by 5% against U.S. Dollar, Yen and RMB with all

other variables held constant, profit before taxation for the year would have been higher by the amount
shown below mainly as a result of net foreign exchange loss on translation of financial liabilities.

2013 2012
—=— Rupees in '000 ——
Effect on profit for the year
Yen to Rupee 5,281 2,961
U.S. $to Rupee 296 3,368
RMB to Rupee 7,259 -
12,836 6,329

(b) Imterest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that fair value or future cash flows of a financial instruments will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

Majority of the interest rate risk of the Company arises from short & long term borrowings from banks
and balance held in deposit account. At the reporting date the profile of the Company's interest bearing
financial instruments is as follows:
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2013 2012
—— Rupees in ‘000 —

Financial asset - fixed rate instruments
Bank balance 9,917 9,762
Financial Liabilities - variable rate instruments
Long term financing - 77,778
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease 1,260 7,840
Short term finances 134,592 406,131
Running finances under mark-up arrangements 17,419 150,738

315,271 642,487

Sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect materially loss
for the year.

Sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A change of 100 basis point in interest rates at the reporting date would have (decreased) / increased
profit for the year by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumed that all other variables, in
particular foreign currency rates remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2012.

Increase (Decrease)
— Rupees in ‘000 —
Cash flow sensitivity - variable rate financial liabilities
As at June 30, 2013 3,153 G3,153)
As at June 30, 2012 6,425 (6,425)

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on profit for the year and
liabilities of the Company.

Other price risk

Price risk is the risk that fair value or future cash flows from a financial instrument will fluctuate due to
changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk). Whether those
changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors
affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market. As at June 30, 2013 /2012 the Company
did not have any material financial instruments dependent on market prices.

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm's length transaction.

As at June 30, 2013 the carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial
statements approximate to their fair values except investment in an Associated Company which is valued
under equity method of accounting. Further, staff loans are valued at their original cost less repayments.
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44.1

44.2

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company's prime objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going
concern so that it can continue to provide returns for sharcholders, benefits for other stakcholders and to
maintain a strong capital base to support the sustained development of its business.

The Company manages its capital structure by monitoring refurn on net assets and makes adjustments to
it in the light of changes in econommic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Company may adjust the amount of dividend paid to sharcholders and / or issue new shares, There was
no change to the Company’s approach to capital management during the year.

OPERATING SEGMENTS

These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of a single reportable segment.
{a}) All non-current assets of the Company at June 30, 2013 are located in Pakistan.
(b) All of the Company's sales relate to customers in Pakistan,

{¢) The Company does not have any customer having sale of ten percent or more during the year
ended June 30, 2013.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 2013 2012
Number of employees as at June 30,

- Poarmanent 223 245

- Contractual 381 541
Average number of employees during the year

- Permanent 232 257

- Contractual 375 378
DISCLOSURE RELATING TO PROVIDENT FUND 2013 \ 2012

— Rupees in ‘000 —

The Company operates a recognised Provident Fund
(the Fund) for its permanent employees.

(i) Size of the Fund - total assets 55,065,666 47,877,478
(ii) Cost of investments made / balance with bank 51,666,667 45,334,569
(iii) Percentage of investments made 93.83% 94.69%
(iv) Fair value of investments 55,729,817 45,960,647
Break-up of the investments is as follows:
2013 2012 2013 2012
—— Percentage — — Rupees in ‘000 —
Term deposits - 20.89 - 10,000,000
Government securities 77.12 28.86 42,464,833 13,819,066
National Investment Trust - units 14.06 14.47 7,741,372 6,926,778
50,206,205 30,745,844
Balance with bank 2.65 30.47 1,460,462 14,588,725
93.83 94.69 51,666,667 45,334,569
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44.3 The figures for year ended June 30, 2013 are based on un-audited financial statements of the Fund
Investment out of Provident Fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 227 of
the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and the rules formmlated for this purpose.

45. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorised for issue on September 30,2013 by the Board of Directors of
the Company.

46. CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Previous year figures have been re-arranged and / or reclassified, whenever necessary, for the purpose
of comparison in the financial statements. For the purpose of better presentation re-classifications made
in these financial statements were as follows:

Re-classification from Re-classification to Note Rupees
component component in ‘000
Balance sheet
Deferred liabilities Staff benefits 20 89,198
Deferred taxation 21 7,973
Chief Executive Director
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Statement of Compliance with Code of Corporate Governance

This statement is being presented to comply with the Code of Corporate Governance (the
CCQG) contained in the listing regulations of Karachi and Islamabad Stock exchanges for
the purpose of establishing a framework of good governance, whereby a listed company

is managed in compliance with the best practices of corporate governance.
The Company has applied the principles contained in the CCG in the following manner:
1. The Company encourages representation of independent non-executive directors

and directors representing minority interest on its board of directors. At present the

board includes:

Category Names

Executive Directors (2) Mr. Ahmed Kuli Khan Khattak
Mr. Jamil A. Shah

Non Executive Directors (6) Mr. Raza Kuli Khan Khattak

Lt. Gen. (Retd.) Ali Kuli Khan Khattak
Mr. Mushtaq Ahmed Khan (FCA)
Ch. Sher Muhammad
Syed Haroon Rashid
Mr. Larbi Hbil
Independent Director (1) Mr. Mohammad Zia
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44 The directors, except for the following, have confirmed that none of them is
serving as a director on more than seven listed companies, including this company.
Mr. Ahmed Kuli Khan Khattak

Mr. Raza Kuli Khan Khattak
Lt. Gen.(Retd.) Ali Kuli Khan Khattak

The above directors have resigned from one of the listed company subsequent to

the balance sheet date.

3 All the resident directors of the Company are registered as tax payers and none of
them has defaulted in payment of any loan to a banking company, a Development
Finance Institution (DFT) or a Non-Banking Finance Institution (NBFI) or, being a
member of stock exchange, has been declared as a defaulter by that stock

exchange.

4 No casual vacancy has occurred during the period under the review.

5 The Company has prepared a code of conduct and have ensured that appropriate
steps have been taken to disseminate it throughout the Company along with the

supporting policies and procedures.

6 The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy
and significant policies of the Company. A complete record of particulars of
significant policies along with the dates on which they were approved or amended

has been maintained.

7 All powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on material
transactions, including appointment and determination of remuneration and terms
and conditions of employment of the CEQ, other executive and non executive
directors have been taken by the Board/Shareholders.

8 The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his
absence, by a director elected by the Board for this purpose and the Board met at
least once in every quarter. Written notices of the Board meetings, along with
agenda and working papers, were circulated at least seven days before the

meetings. The minutes of the meetings were appropriately recorded and circulated.
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9 Most of the directors of the Company have more than 14 years of education and 15

years of experience on the board of directors of listed companies.

10  The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Company
Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, including their remuneration and terms and

conditions of employment.

11  The directors’ report for this year has been prepared in compliance with the
requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance and fully describes the salient

matters required to be disclosed.

12 The financial statements of the Company were duly endorsed by the CEO and the
CFO before approval of the Board.

13 The Directors, CEO and executives do not hold any interest in the shares of the
Company other than that disclosed in the pattern of shareholding.

14  The Company has complied with all the corporate and financial reporting

requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance.

15  The Board has formed an Audit Committee. It comprises three members and all of

them are non-executive directors.

16  The meetings of the Audit Committee were held at least once every quarter prior
to approval of interim and final results of the Company and as required by the
Code of Corporate Governance. The terms of reference of the Committee have

been formed and advised to the Committee for compliance.

17  The Board has formed an Human Resource and Remuneration Committee. It
comprises four members of whom three are non-executive directors and the

chairman of the Committee is a non-executive director.

18  The Board has set up an effective Internal Audit Function.
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The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a
satisfactory rating under the Quality Control Review Programme of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP), that they or any of the partners of the
firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the Company and that
the firm and all its partners are in compliance with International Federation of
Accountants (IFAC) Guidelines on Code of Ethics as adopted by the ICAP.

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed
to provide other services except in accordance with the listing regulations and the

auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

The ‘Closed Period’, prior to the announcement of interim/final results, and
business decisions, which may materially affect the market price of Company’s
securitics, was determined and intimated to directors, employees and stock

exchanges.

Material/price sensitive information has been disseminated among all market

participants at once through stock exchanges.

We confirm that all other material principles enshrined in the Code of Corporate

Governance have been complied with.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Karachi Ahmed Kuli Khan Khattak
September 30, 2013 Chief Executive Officer




REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS ON STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
WITH BEST PRACTICES OF CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

We have reviewed the Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in the Code of Corporate
Governance prepared by the Board of Directors of Ghandhara Nissan Limited to comply with the Listing
Regulations of Karachi and Islamabad Stock Exchanges where the Company is listed.

The responsibility for compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance is that of the Board of Directors of
the Company. Our responsibility is to review, to the extent where such compliance can be objectively verified,
whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's compliance with the provisions of the
Code of Corporate Governance and report if it does not, A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the
Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to cormply with the Code.

As part of our audit of financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and
internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not
required to consider whether the Board’s statement on internal control covers all risks and controls, or to form
an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and
risks.

Further, Listing Regulations of the Karachi and Islamabad Stock Exchanges require the Company to place
before the Board of Directors for their consideration and approval related party transactions distinguishing
between transactions carried out on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions and
transactions which are not executed at arm's length price recording proper justification for using such altemate
pricing mechanism. Further, all such transactions are also required to be separately placed before the audit
committee. We are only required and have ensured compliance of requirement to the extent of approval of
related party transactions by the Board of Directors and placement of such transactions before the audit
committes. We have not carried out any procedures to determine whether the related party transactions were
undertaken at arm's length price or not.

As more fully explained in paragraph 2 of Statement of Compliance which describes the status in respect of
maxinum directorships held by certain directors in listed companies. The directors of the Company have
complied with this requirement subsequent to the year end by resigning from one of the listed company.

Based on our review, with exception of the matter described in the preceding paragraph, nothing has come to
our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the
Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the best practices contained in the Code of Corporate
Governance as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30, 2013.

HAMEED CHAUDHRI & CO., MUNIFF ZIAUDDIN & CO.,
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Osman Hameed Chaudhri Mohammad Moin Khan

KARACHI; September 30, 2013 KARACHI; September 30, 2013
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Key Operating and Financial Data

Key Operating and Financial Data I ‘000"
Particulars Jun-13 Jun-12 Jun-11 Jun-10 Jun-09 Jun-08 Jun-07
Sales 1,852,238 1,388,002 2,650,068 2402,617 2,053,959 3,708,889 2,894,826
(Gross proift / (Loss) 225,865 130,578 252273 119,379 5328 521,838 496,688
Profit/(Loss) before tax 45919 (9T683)  (15493) (I360T)  (434724) 219892 285918
Profit/(Loss) after tax 38385 (85,968) 7097 (88893) (312159 178,157 187,31
Share Capital 450,025 450,025 450,025 450,025 450,025 450,025 450,025
Shareholders equity 659,550 599.018 662,792 633201 698,250 1,009,328 747 940
Fixed Assets - Net 1,326,266 1,382,880 1,441,626 1,496,609 1,535,112 922,501 952,316
Total Assets 2,547,105 2,740,106 3,006,033 3360482 3,392,096 3,101,317 2,398,619
Unit Produced and Supplied (Contract Assembly) 1,568 1,379 1,326 1,705 2,020 2,591 2838
Units Produced 214 236 469 659 801 980 860
Units mported (CBU) 9 12 7 8 100 416 227
Units Sold 226 230 602 766 706 1,572 1312
Dividend - Cash -
Dividend - Bonus
Dividend - Bonus
Ratios
Profitability
(Gross profit margin 12.2% 94%  9.52% 4.97% 0.26% 14.06% 17.16%
Profit/(Loss) before tax 2.5% (7.04%)  058% 5.14% (24%) 1.55% 9.88%
Profit{Loss) after tax 20%  (6.19%)  027% 370% (15%) 4.80% 647%
Return to shareholders:
Return/{Loss) on Equity (BT) 70%  (1631%) @Q34%)  (1952%)  (6937%) UT% B2
Return/{Loss) on Equity (AT) 58%  (1435%) 1.07%  (14.04%) (44.70%) 17.65% 25.03%
Eaming/(Loss) per share (BT)-Rs. 1.02 Q1 (0.34) @71  (1076) 622 635
Earning/(Loss) per share (AT} Rs. 0.85 (191 0.16 (1.98) (6.94) 39 416
Basic Earning Per Share 085 {19 0.16 (198) (654) 396 416
Activity:
Sales to total assets - Times 0.73 0.51 0.86 0.71 0.61 1.20 121
Sales to fixed assets -Times 1.40 1.00 1.84 1.61 1.34 402 3.4
Liquidity:
Current ratio -Times 1.03 0.95 1.04 1.09 1.06 1.33 1.36
Break-up value per share- Rs. 14.65 13.31 14.73 14.07 1552 2243 16.62
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Pattern of Shareholding
As at 30° June 2013

Shalje(;;o(;flers meHa Bliices To Shares Held Percentage
704 1 100 24,732 0.0550
959 101 500 409,352 0.9096
259 501 1,000 225,369 0.5008
405 1,001 5,000 1,121,459 2.4920
104 5,001 10,000 819,129 1.8202
32 10,001 15,000 398,248 0.8849
35 15,001 20,000 649,284 1.4428
17 20,001 25,000 387,327 0.8607
7 25,001 30,000 198,527 0.4411
9 30,001 35,000 292,361 0.6497
7 35,001 40,000 256,837 0.5707
1 40,001 45,000 45,000 0.1000
9 45,001 50,000 445,000 0.9888
4 50,001 55,000 206,218 0.4582
6 55,001 60,000 356,584 0.7924
3 60,001 65,000 188,612 0.4191
2 65,001 70,000 137,000 0.3044
2 70,001 75,000 149,412 0.3320
1 75,001 80,000 75,500 0.1678
2 85,001 90,000 180,000 0.4000
1 90,001 95,000 94,500 0.2100
2 95,001 100,000 200,000 0.4444
1 115,001 120,000 116,000 0.2578
1 140,001 145,000 145,000 0.3222
4 145,001 150,000 596,000 1.3244
1 150,001 155,000 151,000 0.3355
1 205,001 210,000 210,000 0.4666
1 245,001 250,000 245,813 0.5462
1 275,001 280,000 276,000 0.6133
1 305,001 310,000 305,500 0.6789
1 410,001 415,000 410,500 0.9122
1 1,310,001 1,315,000 1,314,000 2.9198
1 2,685,001 2,690,000 2,688,711 5.9746
1 3,645,001 3,650,000 3,647,090 8.1042
1 5,115,001 5,120,000 5,119,820 11.3768
1 22,915,001 22,920,000 22,916,597 50.9230
2,588 45,002,482 100
Categories of Shareholders
Particulars Shareholders Shareholding Percentage
Directors, CEO & Children 8 204,833 0.4552
Associated Companies 3 31,698,507 70.4372
NIT & ICP 2 2,694,461 5.9874
Banks, DFI & NBFI 2 71,391 0.1586
Insurance Companies 1 17,800 0.0396
Modarabas & Mutual Funds 1 5,312 0.0118
General Public (Local) 2,379 9,460,591 21.0224
General Public (Foreign) 170 447,968 0.9954
Others 22 401,619 0.8924
2,588 45,002,482 100.0000
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Shares Held By

Associated Companies, Undertakings & Related Parties
Bibojee Services (Pvt.) Ltd.
The Universal Insurance Company Ltd.
UD Trucks Corporation Japan
(Formerly Nissan Diesel Motor Co. Ltd. - Japan)

NIT & ICP
National Bank Of Pakistan, Trustee Department NI (U)T Fund
Investment Corporation Of Pakistan

Directors, CEQ, their Spouses & Minor Children
Mr. Raza Kuli Khan Khattak

Lt. Gen. (Retd.) Ali Kuli Khan Khattak

Mr. Ahmed Kuli Khan Khattak

Mr. Mushtaq Ahmed Khan

Mr. Muhammad Zia

Choudhry Sher Mohammad

Mr. Jamil Ahmed Shah

Mr. Larbi Hbil.

Banks, Development Financial Institutions, Non-Banking
Financial Institutions, Modarabas & Mutual funds etc.
National Bank Of Pakistan

The Bank Of Punjab

Gulf Insurance Company Ltd.

The Pakistan Fund

Azeem Services (Pvt.) Ltd.

Sardar Mohammad Ashraf D Baluch (Pvt.) Ltd.

Trustees Moosa Lawai Foundation

Trustees Saeedaamin Wake

Trustees Mohamad Amin Wakf Estate

Loads Ltd.

Uni Pak Securities (Pvt) Ltd.

Sarfraz Mahmood (Pvt.) Ltd

Highlinkcapital (Pvt.) Ltd.

Bawa Securities (Pvt.) Ltd.

Capital Vision Securities (Pvt.) Ltd.

Stock Master Securities (Pvt.) Ltd.

GHANDHARA NISSAN LIMITED

No. of Shares

28,046,417
5,000
3,647,090

2,688,711
5,750

62,569
60,070
69,565
3,805
512
6,812
1,000
500

36,891
34,500
17,800
5,312
100
1,000
500
50,000
50,000
315
500
280
1,500
5,000
25,000
103




Darson Securities (Pvt.) Ltd.

Mohammad Munir Mohammad Ahmed Khanani Securities (Pvt.) Ltd.
Trustee National Bank of Pakistan Employees Pension Fund
Trustee National Bank of Pakistan Emp Benevolent Fund Trust
Excell Securities (Private) Limited

Fikree's (SMC-PVT) Ltd.

Wasi Securities (Pvt.) Ltd.

Ismail Abdul Shakoor Securities (Pvt.) Ltd.

Pear] Capital Management (Pvt.) Ltd.

Mazhar Hussain Securities (Pvt.) Ltd.

Others

Shareholders holding 10% or more
Voting interest in the Company
Shares held

Bibojee Services (Pvt.) Ltd. 28,046,417

5,501
2,000
245,813
8,625
1,000
3,500
32

300

50

500
9,908,559

Percentage

62.32

GHANDHARA NISSAN LIMITED
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Form of Proxy

I/ We

Of being

a member(s) of Ghandhara Nissan Limited and holder of

Ordinary Shares as per Registered Folio No./CDC Participant’s ID and Account No.

hereby appoint

of

or failing him/her of
who is

also member of Ghandhara Nissan Limited vide Registered Folio No./CDC Participant’s ID

and Account No. as may/our proxy to vote for me/fus and on my/our behalf at

the 31® Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Wednesday, the 30" October

2013 at 12:30 p.m. and any adjournment thereof.

Signed this day of 2013.

Signature
Witness: Witness:
Name with Name with
NIC Ne.: NIC No.:
Address: Address:
IMPORTANT:

AFFIX
REVENUE
STAMP
Rs.5/-

1. This form of Proxy duly completed must be deposited at the Company’s Registered office Ghandhara House,

109/2, Clifton, Karachi not later than 48 hours before the time of holding the meeting,

2. A Proxy should also be a member of the Company.

3. CDC Sharcholders and their Proxies must each attach an attested photocopy of their National Identity Card or

Passport with this Proxy Form.




